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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report and Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures are given

hereunder:
Amount (in ‘lakhs’)
' Particulars N For year ended 31°% [ For Year ended 31°
March, 2021 March, 2020__
—R;e_nue f;om operations_ i 3,106 _ _574.@7”
| Other income | a . T 10 _ 15
Total Income ] 3,116 5,512
Expenses ) 573 i 7,346
(Loss) before exceptional ite-rhs & tax 7_ o ] _(2,627) . (1,83&
Exceptional tems ] I :
[ (Loss) befc;;‘e Tax _ (2,(5_27) ; (1,834) |
_-Tax_cﬁarge/(credit) N ) _,'__ (40) | (22) |
(Lo-ss) afger tax before Other Comprehensive Income - - (2,587) _ o (1,811)
Total C'c_)mprehensivem(loss) for the year - i '- (2,571) 11,799)
DIVIDEND

The Company has not declared any dividend for the year under review and accordingly the company is not
required to transfer any amount to General Reserve.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As stipulated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors subscribe to the “Directors’
Responsibility Statement” and confirm that:

(a) in preparation of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2021, the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year on March 31, 2021 and its loss for that period ended on March 31,
2021;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing

and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;



(e} the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31% March 2021, 7(seven) Meetings of the Board of Directors of the
company were held on 12.06.2020, 10.08.2020, 09.11.2020, 01.12.2020, 15.01.2021, 05.02.2021,
22.03.2021.

S. ho 1 Name of the Director T No.. o}-Board No. of Meetings

Meeting held attended
Mr. Anil Dungarshi Gé_l-é“ | 7

_Mr-.‘Sumit Gupta [

- | Mr. Raju Gala T

_Mr _S_anjeev Jitend"r_é.GaIa

Mr. T(ailpesh Harakhchand Gala

Mr. Tushar Kumudrai Jani

B0 0N R W N e

(=]

Mr. Chandravir Saran Das

Dr. Yasho V verma

___I\/Ir_.___P_iy_ush_ Pr_avin Gada

NiNiN NN N NN
f—\ll—\cnl—x\lowr—\mcn

I\/Ir Sanjeev Shankar

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED/REAPPOINTED OR RESIGNED
DURING THE YEAR:

DIN .No. /PAN Name of Director/KMP N _bes;ignation Date of Date of
No. Appointment Cessation
l - _/Re-appointment
02096613___ Mr. Raju Gala - Director 15/01/2021 -
00093731 Mr. Kalpesh Harakhchand Director - 16/01/2021
Gala
01436332 Mr. Chandravir Saran Das Independent } 01/07/2020
Director
02536236 Mr. Piyush Pravin Gada Independent 01/08/2020 16/01/2021
- _ Director
06872923 | Mr. Sanjeev Shankar Independent 15/01/2021 -
| DirE_ctor )
ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-9 forms part of the Board’s Report and is annexed

DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.



LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
No loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 by the company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company that
occurred during the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this
report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or joint venture or associate company. The Company is a
subsidiary Company of Navneet Education Limited.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The company has laid down a comprehensive Risk
Assessment and minimization procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These
procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly
defined framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation
process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution, event, financial,
human environment and statutory compliance.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During
the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
Operation was observed.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trademark application filed under The Trade Marks Act, 1999 conferring the exclusive rights to use the
trademark in refation to Company logo has been accepted and registered under classes 9, 41 and 16,
application filed for wordmark under class 16 has been registered, further the same has been accepted
under classes 9 and 41.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY [CSR]
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 as relate to Corporate Social Responsibility do not
apply to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an audit
committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has constituted a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee which functions as per the provisions of the Act.



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review which was not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary
course of business.

AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors, M/s N.A Shah Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 19" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 24™ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2022 (subject to ratification of their appointment by
the Members at every AGM held after the 19™ AGM) and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment
of the Company, which is subject to shareholders approval.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The observations of the
Statutory Auditors in their Report on the financial statement for the year ended on 31%t March, 2021 are
self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Auditors, M/s Vinay Angane & Associates, Company Secretaries were appointed as Secretarial Auditors
of the Company for the FY ended on 31% March 2021 vide resolution of the Board of Directors passed in a
duly convened meeting held on 22" March, 2021.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the Auditors in their Report. The observations of the
Secretarial Auditors in their Report on the Secretarial Compliances for the year ended on 31 March, 2021
are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be
appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules.
Further, ID’s meeting was not held during the year due to change in structure and Covid -19, However they
shared their views amongst themselves through various modes.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employee in the category of employees specified under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

SHARES
There was no change in the Share Capital of the Company by way buy back of shares, bonus issue of shares
or any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has set up a system in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, to redress complaints received and disposed off
during the financial year.

During the year under review, no complaint has been received by the Company.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activities the provisions of Section 134(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the
company to remain as industry leaders.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your company has been
receiving from its business partners and others associated with the company. It will be the company’s
endeavor to build and nurture strong links based on mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operation with
each other, consistent with client interests. The Directors also take this opportunity to thank all investors,
clients, Banks, Government and regulatory authorities for their continued support.

By order of the Board
For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

bk le’ﬂ

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
Date : 24" May, 2021 DIN:00092952 DIN:00039596

Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-1

Form

No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|1. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U22110DL1998PTC094399

Registration Date

10/06/1998

Name of the Company |

INDIANNICA LEARNING PRIVATE LIMITED

Cafegoﬁ/ Sub-category of the

Company

Limited by shares

Address of the Registered office and

contact details

A-36, Second Floor, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial |
Estate, Main Mathura Road, New Delhi -110044
E-mail : accounts@ebindia.com

Tel: 011-47154112

Wh(_elher Listed Company

No

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer

| Agent, if any

NA

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be

stated:-
e — of..ﬁ_
Sl. Name and Description of main the % to total
No. | products / services Product/ Company
Service
1 Publishing, printiné,ma.nd reproduction of 581 100%
recorded media

turnover of the

1L
[
|
|

SL

No.

[ 1

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name and Address
CIN/GLN
of the Company

Holding

% of

Navneet Education
Limit_ed

Applicable
/Subsidiary/ | Shares pp.
. Section
Associate held
_ |
Holding 100 2(46)

L22200MH1984PLC0O34055 l




V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity)

i} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

Physical [Total

%of Total

Share

Demat

Physical

A. Promoters

Total %

of Total

Shares

%
Change
during
the

year

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF

15

0.01

15

15

0.01

b) Central

Govt. or

State Govt.

c)Bodies Cor

49351048

0 49351048

49351048

49351048

99.99

d) Bank /FI

e) Any Other

_S-I-JB T(ﬁ:\L: (A) (1)

49351063

0 49351063

100

|
49351063

| 49351063

100

(2) Foreign

alNRls  Individuals

b)Other  Individuals

¢)Bodies Corporate

d) Banks /FI

e) Any Other

“Su b-Total
(A) (2)-

Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(A)1)+ (A)(2)

49351063

- 49351063

100

49351063

100




(i) Shareholding of Promoters(Equity Share Capital)

Si. % |
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year |  Shareholding at the end of the year ?
No. change |
el 1o | oo g ) - chare
[ %of Shares |
%of Shares % of total \holding
% of total | | Pledged / .
| Pledged / Shares of | during
No. of Shares |Shares of the| No. of Shares encumbe red |
| encumbered the | the
company to total l
to total shares | company L oyear
ﬁ J ’ shares
L Navneet Education Limited 4,93,51,063 100 . 4,93,51,063 100 i [
I O P
| |
‘ Total 4,93,51,063 100 - 4,93,51,063 100 - I -
(iii} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Equity Share Capital, please specify, if there is no change)
L si
| N Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative s hareholding during the year
. No.
' : % of Total Shares of % of total shares of the
: No. of shares No. of Shares
the Company Company
o 1 At the beginning of the year - - - -
3. At the end of the year | - . - -- -
i

®  There was no change during the Year

(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Sharehoiders(Equity Share Capital) (other than Directors,

Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

sk Shareholding at the Cumulative S hareholding during the year

No. beginning of the year

S i - P . e e L e e e e e

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholders

No. of

Shares

| % of Total Shares |

of the Company

No. of Shares

Company




X

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel{Equity Share Capital)

Sl No.

For Each of the
Directors and

KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

% of Total Shares

of the Company

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares of the

Company

year

At the beginning of the

.Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
specifying the reasons
forincrease
/ decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer

/ bonus/ sweat

V.

 SUB TOTAL: iA) (1)

Category of

Shareholders

At the End of the year

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Preference Capital)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year %

Change

during

Demat

zj%of Total

E'.'Share

|

Physical [Total

A. Promoters

Demat

Physical

Total % of Total the

Shares year

(1i |n£n

a) Individual/ HUF

b) Central
Govt. or

) State Govt.

¢)Bodies Cor

d) Bank /Fl

| 43000000

49000000

100 -

e) Any Other

(2) Foreign

43000000

49000000 100 -




a)NRIs  Individuals

i
!
!
!
i
H

: b)Other  Individuals

c)Bodies Corporate

d) Banks /FI

e} Any Other

Sub-Total

[ (A2
| Total Shareholding of .

Promoter (A) =

- - - - 49000000 - 100 -
{(A)1)+ (A)2) g_ 49000000
|
S, = i -
(i) shareholding of Promoters (Preference Share Capital)
sl. | O % |
| Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year |  Shareholding at the end of the year
! No. | change
: | ' in share
| | %of Shares .
%of Shares % of total holding
| % of total Pledged / ' .
Pledged / Shares of | during
No. of Shares Shares of the No. of Shares encumbe red
| encumbered the the
| company | to total
to total shares . company | year
| shares
| et = .
. ! Navneet Education Limited ) ) ) 5 4,90,00,000 100 ) )
| | a‘
; Total - - l - | 4,90,00,000 100 - -
! i i .
| i : !
........ S | i
{iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding(Preference Share Capital) (please specify, if there is no change)
sL
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative s hareholding during the year

No. of shares

% of Total Shares of

the Company

No. of Shares

% of total shares of the

Company

Al the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

®  There was no change during the Year



Sl

{iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders ( Preference Share Capital ){other than Directors,

Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

| ! Shareholding at the Cumulative S hareholding during the year
No. | I beginning of the year
|
____________________________________________________ o R
For Each of the Top 10 ; No. of % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
Shareholders Shares of the Company Company
1 - | - - -
X
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel(Preference Share Capital)
Sl. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
For Each of the | No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares of the
Directors and of the Company Company
KMP
1. | At the beginning of the -- - -- --
year
2. Date wise Increase / - - - -
Decrease in Share
holding during the year |
specifying the reasons |
for increase E
/ decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer
/ bonus/ sweat
3. | At the End of the year - -- - -




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans . Unsecured Deposits | Total
excluding Deposits | Loans Indebtedness
i
indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i} Principal Amount i 3,000 100
ii)interest due but not paid iii)interest
accrued but not due |
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,000 100 i 3,100
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year- Addition 96 | 300
Reduction
Net Change 96 5 300 396
indebtedness at theend of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount
3,096 400
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due ’
Total (i+ii+iii) f 3,096 400 3,496

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manage (In Rs):

| sl | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total
| N - Manager Amount
Sumit Gupta
{(Managing | !
Director : g
1| Gross salary i
|
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 1,32,38,219 1,32,38,219
17(1) of the income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 39,600 39,600

17(2) Income-tax Act,1961

; (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income/
| |
| tax Act, 1961




2. | Stock Option | i
3. “ Sweat Equity i
4. Commission
| - as % of profit -
- others, specify
e others' e Speufy _i ............ e =
____________________ ) Total {A]. 1,32,77,819 1,32,77,819
Ceiling as per the Act (After passing the special
Resolution) 1,68,00,000 ;
B. Remuneration to other Directors (in Rs):
SI.. E Partiéulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
No.. _E Amount
E Mr. fl e Dr. Yasho Mr. Piyush Mr. Sanjeev
! Tushar | Chandravir| Verdhan Pravin Gada| Shankar
R ? Jani S Das Verma
1. Independent Directors
f - Fee for attending board/
! committee meetings 2,598,600 | 47,200 47,200 47,200
! - Commission
! - Others, please specify :;
Total (1) 2,59,600 | 47,200 47,200 | 47,200 | 4,01,200
. Other Non-Executive i
Directors
; - Fee for attending board/ 2,36,000
| . - 2,36,000
committee meetings
- Commission
- Others, please specify .
Total (2) [ - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 2,59,000 | 47,200 2,36,000 47,200 47,200 | 6,37,200
Total Managerial
________ Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as
____________ per the Act.




C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Amount In Rs.

Key Managerial Personnel

ISl Particulars of |
L Remunefation - |
(Chief FinanciaI;2 {Company {CEO) : Total i
Officer) i Secretary) | :
Deepak Kaku f
Meera
Sawhney
1._ Gross salary ]
| i
(a) Salary as per provisions |
' contained in section 17(1) of the - 4,23,838
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - .
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 L
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under : -
section 17(3) .;
2. Stoc"khOption - o - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
- Commission B
- as % of profit - - ; - -
_____ - others, specify... - 5
5. Others, please specify - - E - -
..... - i ﬁl
Total - | 4,23,838 - 4,23,838
Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority (RD/ Appeal made if
Type Companies Act Punishment/ NCLT/ Court) any (give
l . Compounding fees details)
1‘ o imposed
f
- A: COMPANY -
| . ...7Pena lty ............
Punishment - NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Compounding

NIL




. OTHER OFFICERS {N DEFAULT (COMPANY SECRETARY)

Penalty ‘

Punishment

NIL

Date : 24" May, 2021
Place: New Delhi

By order of the Board
For M/s Indiannica Learning private limited

el b cola @J“M/

Anil Dungarshi Gala Sumit Gupta
Chairman & Director Managing Director
DIN:00092952 DIN:00039596



N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIANNICA LEARNING PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying ind AS financial statements of Indiannica Learning Private
Limited (‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2021, the Statement of
Profic and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (together referred to as ‘Ind AS financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March 2021, and its loss inciuding other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiiities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter - How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Accuracy of useful life and impairment test | Prmc:palAudlt Procedures
of brand license grouped under intangible
assets As part of our audit procedures, we have
5 performed following:
We refer to note 2.1(c) of significant accounting | ¢ Reviewed the useful life / balance useful life
policies for impairment of brand license and ncte and discussed the same with management as
5 of the Ind AS financial statements for carrying ' regards the expectation of future economic

amount of the same. ' benefits

As per ‘right-to-use brand’ agreement entered e Evaluated relevant assumptions used in the |
into with Encyclopedia Britannica inc. in the impairment testing of the brand license,

financial year 2016-17, the Company had focusing on the reasonableness of the '
capitalized amount paid aggregating to Rs. 35 | forecasted economic information (for next

crores; written down value of which is Rs. 14.49 | four years) and the estimation and allocation

| crores as at year end 31% March 2021, i of the revenue and costs related brand. As

| per the projections, the expected profit is |
|

|

Amortization of cost incurred and impairment | significantly higher than the carrying value. :
test for carrying amount includes: |
e Estimation of usefui life based on expected Reviewed the accuracy of the management's J
future economic benefits from the usage of earlier estimates and understood the rea / A ,1 =
brand; and for variances. i

I

| « Management estimates & judgement in| J

N. A. Shah Associates LLP is registered with limited Ilablllty having LLP ldentlflcatlon No. AAG-7909
Regd. Off:: B 41-45, Paragon Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai 400 013. \«1 -
Tel.: 91-22-40733000 ® Fax : 91-22-40733080 @ E-mail : info@nashah,com :




N. A. SHAH ASSQOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s report (continued)
" regards to future market response and | - )
expected profitability. - -
Accuracy of management estimates for | Principal Audit Procedures
provision fcr sales return

As part of our audit procedures, we have
We refer to note 2.1(n) of significant accounting | performed following: ,
policies for accounting of provisions and note 18 | ¢ Evaluated the design and effectiveness of
of the Ind AS financial statements for carrying internal control over capturing details of sales
amount and mcvement of provisions. return in accounting system;

| Provision for expected sales return is made s Reviewed supporting for sales return on
based on review of past trend of actual sales sample basis and understood reason for the
returns and after considering impact of lockdown | same:

amid Covid-19. This involves:
o Estimation of expected sales return as | e Verified accuracy of amounts of earlier year's

compared to trend available for actual sales captured in working for making expected
return based on market conditions, review of sales return provision and understood
special terms / guarantee offered to reasons for deviations; and

! customers and other factors; and

o FEvaluated the relevant assumptions made,

e Judgement of future market response for judgement used and reasonableness of the
new products launched during the year same.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this auditor's report is Director's report, but does not inciude the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed cn the other information obtained prior to the date of this
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material mlsstatement
whether due to fraud or error. /
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in preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

<« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scepe of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sugmﬂcant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit. 58S
.‘:{:, \
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31t March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31¢
March 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f.  With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given in
“Annexure B”: Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting;

g. With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid / provided by
the Company to its directors for the year ended 31t March 2021 is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act; and

/4 v
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS financial statements;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There are no ameunts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For N.A Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

Prashant Daftary _
Partner SULERED ACCO==*
Membership No. 117080

UDIN: 21117080AAAABS8472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 251 May 2021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 315t March 2021
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of
our report of even date]

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

In respect of fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Company has physically verified all fixed assets during the year. In our opinion, frequency
of verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its
assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on examination of the records,
we report that the Company does not own any immovable property, which is classified as fixed
assets. Therefore, clause (i) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion,
the frequency of physical verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physica!l stocks and the book records were not material and have been properly
dealt with in books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, requirements of
clause (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided
any guarantees or securities covered under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act. Therefore,
question of ensuring compliance with Section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits. Therefore, question of reporting compliance with directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder does not arise. We are informed that no Order
relating to the Company has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunai or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the activities carried on by the Company. Therefore,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) According to the information and as per explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of accounts, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, tax deduction at source, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, gocds and service tax, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues as applicable to the Company during the year with the appropriate authorities. As
at 31st March 2021, there are no such undisputable dues payable for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.




(viil)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
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(b) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, there
are no dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, tax deduction at source,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute, except the following disputed dues which have not been deposited since the matters
are pending with the relevant forum:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Name of statue Nature of dues | Amount | Period to Forum where
- | which it relates | dispute is pending
| The Income Tax Act, Income tax & 67* | F.Y.2016-17 CIT (Appeals)
| 1961 Interest ‘

* net of Rs. 2 lakhs of refund adjusted by department against total demand of Rs. 69 lakhs
(Also refer note 34(i) of the financial statement).

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
financial institutions, banks and debenture holders. The Company has not borrowed any money
from government.

During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause
(ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any incidence of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its employees / officers, nor have been informed of
any such case by the management.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xit) of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statement as required by the applicable Ind AS. Refer Note 37 to the Ind AS financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Therefore, question of our comment on compliance with the provisions of Section
42 of the Act and utilisation of the amount raised for the purposes for which it was raised does not
arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him and hence compliance with Section 192 of the Act does not arise.

]
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Prashant Daftary -
Partner
Membership No. 117080
UDIN: 21117080AAAABS8472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25t May 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 315 March 2021
[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiannica Learning Private
Limited (“the Company”), as of 318t March 2021, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31t March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance
Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI).

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, issued by ICAI. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect'the
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration number: 116560W / W100149

T e e

Prashant Daftary
Partner
Membership number: 117080
UDIN: 21117080AAAABS8472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25" May 2021



Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(Amount in Lakhs)

P Note As at 31st As at 31st
Rarticulars No. | March?2021 March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 65 195
(b) Right of use Assets 4 166 669
(c) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 5 1,456 1,951
(d) Intangible assets under development 6 - -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Security deposits 7 46 51
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 241 207
(g) Assets for Non-current tax 24 24
Total non-current Assets 1,998 3,096
Current assets
(@) Inventories 9 1,411 1,537
(b) Financia!l Assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 4,395 5,852
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 309 176
(iii) Other bank balances 12 3 3
(c) Other current assets 13 158 124
Total current Assets 6,276 7,692
TOTAL ASSETS 8,274 10,788
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 14 4,935 4,935
(b) Other equity (3,484) (913)
Total equity 1,451 4,022
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 30 37
(i) Lease liabilities 16 130 490
(b) Other non-current liabilities 17 5 12
(¢) Provisions 18 - 2
Total non-current liabilities 165 541
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 3,496 3,100
(i) Lease liabilities 37 162
(iii) Trade payables 20
- Amount due of micro and small enterprises 215 153
- Amount due of others 1,078 931
(iv) Other financial liabilities 21 126 101
(b) Other current liabilities 22 102 147
(¢) Provisions 18 1,604 1,631
Total current liabilities 6,658 6,225
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,274 10,788 |

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

T 1.

Prashant Déftaw -
Partner
Membership Number: 117080

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica

(India) Private Limited)

oW

Anil D. Gala
Director
DIN: 00092952

Dard

Deepak Kaku

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: 24th May, 2021

At

Sumit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 00039596

oL 4

Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A48522




Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note No.{For the year ended| For the year
Particulars 31st March 2021 |ended 31st March
2020
Income
Revenue from operations 23 3,106 5,497
Other income 24 10 15
Total income 3,116 5,512
Expenses
Cost of materials & components consumed 25 1,053 1,350
Purchase of traded goods and services 11 15
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of finished goods 26 127 781
Employee benefits expense 27 1,865 2,084
Finance costs 28 267 419
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 749 721
Other expenses 30 1,671 1,977
Total expenses 5,743 7,346
(Loss) before tax (2,627) (1,834)
Tax expense: 31
Current tax - -
Deferred tax (40) (22)
(40) (22)
(Loss) for the year (2,587) (1,811)
Other comprehensive income (OCI):
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year 22 17
Less: Income tax relating to the above (6) 4
(b) Items that wili be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year - -
Less: Income tax relating to the above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 16 13
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (Total of loss and other
comprehensive income / (loss) for the year) (2,571) (1,799)
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10/- each
Basic and diluted (in INR) 32 (5.24) (3.67)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W100149

Prashant Daftary
Partner
Membership Number: 117080

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerty known as Encyclopaedia

Britannica (India) Private Limited)

I N[ AR A

Anil D. Gala
Director
DIN: 00092952

\//‘)
>
fﬁg;pak Kaku

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: 24th May, 2021

s

Sumit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 00039596

wN

Meera Sawhney
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A48522




Indiannica Learning Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2021

CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

A Equity share capital

(Amount in Lakhs)

Changes in equity Changes in equity
Balance as at 31st March 2019 share capital Bgias:ﬁaari;t shate capital Balance 2s at
during the year 2020 during the year | 31st March 2021
2019-20 2020-21
4,935 - 4,935 - 4,935
B Other equity
(Amount in Lakhs)
Optionally Othar :
Convertible Reserves and surplus Comprehensive
; ; Income Total other
Particulars Preference Shares e
‘ =+ Remeasurement equity
Refer note (a) Securities : : :
below premium Retained earnings on defined
i benefit plan -
As at 31st March 2019 - 2,106 (6,080) 3 (3,971)
(Loss) for the period - - (1,811) - (1,811)
Convertible Preference Shares 4,900 - - - 4,900
Expenses for increase in authorised capital - - (44) - (44)
| Remeasurement on defined benefit plan - - - 13 13
As at 31st March 2020 4,900 2,106 (7,936) 16 (913)
(Loss) for the period - - (2,587) - (2,587)
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan - - - 16 16
As at 31st March 2021 4,900 2,106 (10,523) 32 (3,484)

Notes:
a

[

The Company had issued Nit (Previous year: 4,90,00,000) Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCPS) of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. NIL

(Previous year : 4,900 Lakhs). The OCPSs were issued on a right basis to holding company 'Navneet Education Limited' at face value. The OCPSs
carries 0% coupon rate. The Company has an option to convert OCPS into same number of Equity shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each (being face
value of the shares) at any time after allotment date but before end of 20 years. In case OCPS are not converted by the Company, they shall be
redcemed at par in full not later than 20 years from the date of allotment. In the opinion of the management of the Company, the OCPS would be
fully converted into equity and there is no obligation to redeem the OCPS, considering the same, the OCPS have been classified as equity. Tabulated
below allotment dates on which OCPSs were issued in previous year:

Wticulars Date of allotment
13,90,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 09-Sep-19
25,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 26-Sep-19
20,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 03-Dec-19
10,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 13-Dec-19
‘30,00.000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 29-Jan-20
115,00,000 OCPS of Rs. 10 each 18-Mar-20

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For N. A, Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W / W10014

Prashant Daftary(
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Indiannica Learning Private Limited
(Formerly known as Encyclopaedia Britannica (India) Private Limited)

HRPYE

Anil D. Gala
Director
DIN: 00092952

T

De/épak Kaku

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: 24th May, 2021

Sumit Gupta
Managing director
DIN: 00039596

g

Meera Sawhney

Company Secretary

Mem. No. A48522
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Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Cash Fiow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2021
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars

Forthe year ended
31st March 2021

For the year ended
31st March 2020

A. | Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss) before tax (2,627) (1,834)

Adjustments to reconcite (loss)/ profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortisation expense 749 721

Fixed assets disposed off 11 :

Loss on lease termination 28 -

Provision for doubtful debts 530 105

Provision for doubtful advances - 41

Provision for doubtful deposit 11 -

Inventory written off / provision 187 399

Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) 1 [e3)]

| Finance costs 267 419

Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities (842) (152)

Working Capitat adjustments:

Detrease /(Increase) in trade receivables 926 696
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (60) 382
| Decrease(Increase) in other financial assets (6) 4

Decrease/(Increase) in other non-financial assets (34) 18

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions ()] (451)

{Decrease)/Increase in trade payable & other financial liabilities* 235 (2,206)

(Decrease)/ Increase in current non-financiat liabilities (53) (101)
| Cash inflow / (outflow) from operations 156 {1,809)

Income tax paid (net of refund) - 42
| Net cash inflows / (outflows) from operating activities (A) 156 (1,766)
|
'} B. |Cash flow from investing activities
| Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8) (21)

Purchase of intangible assets - (17)

Intangible assets under development - 12

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 5 -
| __|Net cash (outflows) from investing activities (B) (3) (26)

C. |Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from Issue of Preference share Capital - 4,900

Repayment of NBFC Loan (Vehicle Loan) (€4] (6)

Loan taken from holding company 1,130 1,100

L oan repaid to holding company (830) (3,900)

Expenses towards increase in authorised capital - (44)

Payments of Lease liabilities (171) (195)

Interest Paid (237) (402)
| Net cash inflows / (outflows) from financing activities (C) (115) 1,453
] Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 39 {339)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (2,824) (2,485)
| Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 1 below) (2,785) (2,824)

Notes:
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent as per Cash Flow Statement

-

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2021

For the year ended

31st March 2020

Cash & cash Equivalent (Note 10) 309 176
Bank Overdraft (Note 19) (3,096) (3,000)
Balance as per Cash Flow St {2,785) (2,824)

2. Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes (Refer note 44).

I'he accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached hereto

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
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1

a)

b)

9]

2.1

(a)

(b)

Corporate Information

Indiannica Learning Private Limited is a private limited company domiciled in India (CIN number U22110DL1998PTC094399); and is
a subsidiary of Navneet Education Limited (‘the Holding Company’ and 'the Ultimate Holding Company'). The Company’s operations
comprises of publishing and sale of educational books with products ranging from school books, reference books, technical &
professional books.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 24th May 2021.
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS")
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Functional and presentation of currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are rounded
to the nearest lakhs.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:
i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
ii) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Summary of significant accounting policies
Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the division II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, for a company whose financial statements are made in
compliance with the Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2016 and also the subsequent amendments which were notified during the year and applicable to the period.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing
Property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to
the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Parts (major components) of an item of property, plant and equipments having different useful lives are accounted as separate
items of property, plant and equipments.

Depreciation on assets is calculated on a straight-line basis as per the useful lives of the assets prescribed under the Schedule 11
(under section 123) to the Companies Act, 2013, except:

a) in respect of servers and networks where the Company has estimated useful life of 3 years being lower than the useful life of 6
years as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, based on its internal technical assessment.

b) Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease term or 10 years, whichever is less.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and in case of any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.
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Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for year ended 31st March 2021
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

()

(d)

(e)

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are recognized when the entity controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, intangible assets are recognised at cost. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with infinite life are amortised over the useful economic fife and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

The Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of different categories of intangible assets as follows:

a) License is capitalized at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license.
b) Software are amortized over the period of 2.5 years (SLM)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in usc. Recaverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation mode! is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recoghized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a component of depreciation
and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to the extent the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:

> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

> Held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

>Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least tweilve months after the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 5 AS
/7, 4
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f

(9)

(h)

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ effective from 1st April 2019, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2019. The adoption of this standard did not had any impact on the loss
for the year.

As a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprise of the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date net of lease incentive received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term of right-of-use asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for teases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets and lease liability balances are adjusted on partial / full termination of lease and corresponding gain / loss on
such partial / full termination is charged to other income / other expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with banks (other than on lien) and all short term and
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

The category applies to the Company’s trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security and other deposits.
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

2
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(b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met

- Financial asset is held with the business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets and

. Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value and fair value movements are recognised in
other comprehensive income. However, interest income, impairment losses & reversal of impairment losses and foreign exchange
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the effective interest method.

(c) Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at
amortized cost or at FVTOC, is classified at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch”).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. The Company has not designated any debt instrument at FVTPL.

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. All equity instruments are measured at
fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss except for those equity
instruments for which the entity has elected to present value changes in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such
clection on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive
income to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. The Company has not designated any equity instrument at FVTOCIL.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

() The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired or

(b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
ii. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contro! of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade and other receivables.

The application of simplified approach does,ﬂq_tj_.requj[g the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on |ifetif_nc/ECLs at each,reporting date, right from its initial recognition. &
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been 2
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on a twelve month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractuai cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Finandial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as finandial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings
or payables, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, etc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This category includes trade and other payables etc. After initial recognition, such liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the fiabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial Yiabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initiat recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in other comprehensive income. These gains / losses are not subsequently
transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair vatue through profit or loss.

Loans & borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Classification as debt or equity instrument

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the dgﬁni‘ddﬁt‘;‘uf-a._ﬁnancial fiability and an equity instrument T
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(i)

()

(k)

Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at fair value of a similar liability that does not have
an equity component. The equity component is recognised initially as the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated
to the liability and the equity components, if material, in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent
to initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

Re-classification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no re-
classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a re-classification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business modei are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external
parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant
to its operations. If the Company re-classifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification prospectively from the re-classification
date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the labilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Finished goods: Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. cost includes cost of purchase of direct
materials and labour. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for services or goods provided in the normal course of business. Revenue is recorded net of returns, trade discount, cash
discount, other rebates and taxes (if any).

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products to customers, which is typically upon delivery of the goods to
the customer, in an amount that reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those products, are recorded at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade, volume & other discounts.

Subscription of digital content and royalty for right to use license:
Revenue from subscription of digital content and royalty for right to use license are accounted over the subscription period /
agreement period in accordance with the terms of the arrangement on straight line basis.

Interest

Interest income is recognised as it accrues in statement of profit and loss, using the effective interest rate (EIR) which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized-in-the other comprehensive income or directly in equity, where the related
income tax is also recognised accordingly. ; g
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0]

(m)

Current income tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or substantively enacted
as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income tax obligation for the period are
recognized in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities.

Any interest / penalties, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in income tax charge or (credit),
but are rather recognised within finance costs.

The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities at the
reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets
against current income tax fiabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabie entity and the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest expenses calculated as per effective interest method,
exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are treated as an adjustment to the borrowing cost
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Employee benefits
i) Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting period are classified as short term
employee benefits and they are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the Company contributes fixed contribution to a
government administered fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s defined
contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme and Government Pension
Fund. The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which the employee renders the related services.

b) Defined benefit plan

The Company’s obligation towards gratuity liability is not funded. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is
determined by reference to market vields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of
obligations.

Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) and (c) the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement if profit
and loss in subsequent periods.

The interest cost on defined benefit obligation is recognised under finance cost.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or __settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs.
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(n)

(0)

(p)

c) Compensated absences

The Company has benefits in the form of compensated absences. The present value of such compensated absences is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is
determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of
obligations.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as income or expense.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of other long-term benefits are recognised when the curtailment or settlement
occurs.

Provisions
(i) General

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(ii) Contingent assets/ liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a
contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources wili be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to ordinary equity
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average
numbers of shares also includes fixed number of equity shares that are issuable on conversion of compulsorily convertible
instruments and it is included from the date consideration is receivable (generally the date of their issue) of such instruments.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place cither:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, /bas,_‘g’::c{on th';!;hwest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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(a)

(r)

(s)

2.2

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted price in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s financial statements are presented in reporting currency, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in
which the entity primarily generates revenues and incurs expenses.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the spot rates prevailing at the date the transaction.

Monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the closing exchange
rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign exchange differences recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions.

Segment reporting policies

The operating segments have been identified taking into account the nature of the products / services, nature of risks and returns,
internal organization structure and internal financial reporting system. In accordance with Ind AS 108, identification of the operating
segment is based on the conditions specified in paragraph 5 to the standard, i.e. the segment engages in business activities,
performance is regularly reviewed by CODM and discrete financial information is available for the segment.

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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2.3

(a) Impairment of Licenses

Impairment testing is an area involving management judgement, requiring assessment as to whether the carrying value of assets
can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections which have
been discounted at an appropriate rate. In calculating the net present value of the future cash flows, certain assumptions are
required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters including management’s expectations of future growth, discount rates
ctc. The company has prepared projections for next 5 years which have been used for the said calculations.

(b) Allowances for doubtful receivables

The management estimates at each reporting date the recoverability of its trade and other receivables. Allowances for doubtful
receivables is estimated based on the best available facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, confirmation from the
customers using the ECL approach. The ailowances are re-valued and adjusted as additional information received affects the
amount estimated.

(c) Defined benefit plan

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present value of the benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations.
The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include determination of discount rates, future salary increase
and mortality rates. Due to complexity of the valuation and the underlying assumptions, defined benefit plan obligations are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

(d) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of the financial statements recorded on balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow method. The input to these models are derived from
observable market data where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

(e) Income taxes

The Company has’exposure to income taxes primarily in Indian jurisdictions. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which losses can be utilized. Significant management’s judgement is required
to determine the amounts of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits along with future tax planning strategies. Considering lower probability of future taxable profit, utilisation of deferred tax
asset is not certain, hence the same is not recognised in full and also carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation are not
considered for calculation of DTA.

New standard issued / modified but not effective as at reporting date

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not notified new standard or amendments to the existing standards which would have been
effective from April 1, 2021. =
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4 Right of use Assets

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Office premises
Gross block

As at March 31, 2019 -
Additions 831
Disposals / adjustments -
As at March 31, 2020 831
Additions 176
Disposals / adjustments (831)
As at March 31, 2021 176
Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31, 2019 -
Charge for the year 162
Disposals / adjustments -
As at March 31, 2020 162
Charge for the year 132
Disposals / adjustments (284)
As at March 31, 2021 10
Net book value

As at March 31, 2020 669
As at March 31, 2021 166
Notes:

4.1 For details of other disclosures required under Ind AS 116 on above assets, refer note 36 of the
financial statement.
4.2 Refer note 3.2 for adjustment on account of pre-mature termination of lease.
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5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Amount in Lakhs)

lmiculars Software Licenses Total I
Gross block

As at March 31, 2019 45 3,500 3,545
Additions 17 - 17
Disposal - - -
As at March 31, 2020 62 3,500 3,562
Additions - - -
Disposal - - -
As at March 31, 2021 62 3,500 3,562
Accumulated Amortisation

As at March 31, 2019 29 1,085 1,114
Additions 14 484 497
Disposal - - -
As at March 31, 2020 43 1,568 1,611
Additions 13 482 495
Disposal - - -
[As at March 31, 2021 56 2,050 2,106
Net book value

As at March 31, 2020 19 1,932 1,951
As at March 31, 2021 6 1,450 1,456

5

Impairment test for Licenses has been carried out by the management based on the projections for next three years as approved by
the Managing Director and Chairman. Remaining useful life of this license is also three years for which projections are made. The
value in use of the future earnings based on the projections is significantly higher than the carrying value of the licenses. Some of the
assumptions based on which projections are prepared based on market estimates and management judgements which have been
relied upon by the auditors.

5.2 Disclosures on impairment test for licenses

a} Impairment loss recognised / (reversal) in the Statement of Profit & Loss and in the Other Comprehensive Income is Rs. Nit (Previous
year: Rs. Nil).

b}  Assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount of brand licenses, are prepared based on market estimates and management
judgements (i.e. Growth rate, EBIT, discount rate etc.)

€) The management has carried out sensitivity analysis of discount rate and growth rate considered to arrive at value in use and
accordingly to the same also, there is no provision for impairment required,

5.3 Details of remaining amortisation period and carrying value of intangibles are as under:
Description Carrying amount as at Remaining useful life as at
[in months]
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Software 6 19 9to 14 9to 26
Licenses 1,450 1,932 36 48
Total 1,456 1,951

6 Intangible assets under development

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

Software / mobile application
Opening balance

Add: Additions to intangible assets under development

Less: Capitalised during the year

Total

7 Security deposits
At amortised cost
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits
Less: Provision for doubtful deposit

Total

12

5
(16)|

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

57 51
(11) -
46 51
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8 Deferred tax relates to the following
(Amount in Lakhs)

Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 _ March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Deferred tax liability
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (107) (130) 24 82
Lease assets net of lease liabilities # 4 4 (4)
(107) (134) 28 78
Deferred tax Assets
Provision for sales returns 72 136 (64) (35
Provision for obsolete inventories 38 92 54 92
Provision for employee benefits 30 26 3 )
Provision for doubtful receivables 150 67 83 44)
Provision for bonus 58 20 38 (68)
348 341 7 (60)
Deferred tax (expense)/income 35 18
Net deferred tax assets 241 207
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net) March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Opening balance 207 189
Tax (expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss 40 22
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI (6) (4)
Closing balance 241 207

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

8.1 Considering uncertainties on utilisation of full Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), currently it has been partially recognised to the extent it is
certain to be utilised. Accordingly, carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation are not considered for calculation of partial DTA.
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8.2 Also refer note 31(c).
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{Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Inventories
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)
Materials 5 5

Less: Provision for Obsolete Material (5) (5)
Finished goods
Manufactured goods 1,554 1,863
Less: Provision for Obsolete Inventory (203) (397)
1,351 1,466
Traded goods 60 71
Total 1,411 1,537
9.1 During the year, the Company has written off Rs. 382 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 1 Lakhs) & charged to the
Statement of Profit & Loss.
10 Trade receivables
Considered good 5,217 6,145
5,217 6,145
Considered good
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & credit losses (822) (293)
Total 4,395 5,852
10.1 No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly
with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in
which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 90 to 120 days.
10.2° The Company follows simplified approach & the trade receivables do not contain significant financing component
and accordingly the Company does not separately track changes in credit risk of trade receivables as the
impairment amount represents "lifetime" expected credit loss. Accordingly, the disclosure as required by
Schedule 111, Division II as regards (a) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk & b)
Trade Receivables which are credit impaired is not required. In addition to collective pool assessment, the
Company has carried out individual assessment as well, however, the amount of loss allowance to be recognised
for such trade receivables is Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil).
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash On hand # #
Balance with Scheduled Banks
- On current accounts 309 176
Total 309 176
12 Other bank balances '
Margin money deposits (Refer note 12.1 below) 3 3
Total 3 3
12.1 Margin money deposit balance represents restricted deposits (along-with accrued interest thereon) under lien
(subject to first charge to secure the Company's bank guarantee) placed with sales tax authorities.
13 Other current assets
Advance to suppliers 129 107
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (56) (56)
73 51
Prepayments 27 37
Advances to Employees for expenses 43 32
Goods and Service Tax 15 5
Total 158 124
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14 Share capital
(Amount in Lakhs)

a) Authorised share capital 2020-2021 2019-2020
5,07,00,000 (Previous year: 5,07,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 5,070 5,070
4,90,00,000 (Previous year: 4,90,00,000) optionally convertible preference shares of Rs.10/~ each 4,900 4,900
Total Authorised capital 9,970 9,970

) ) 2020-2021 2019-2020
b I h i
) ssued share capita No. of shares Amount in Lakhs No. of shares  Amount in Lakhs

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year 4,93,51,063 4,935 4,93,51,063 4,935
Add: Shares Issued - -

Less: Shares Cancelled / Buy Back - - - -
1@ the end of the year 4,93,51,063 4,935 4,93,51,063 4,935

0% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
At the beginning of the year 4,90,00,000 4,900 - -
- - 4,90,00,000 4,900

Add: Shares Issued
Less: Shares Cancelled / Buy Back - - - -
At the end of the year 4,90,00,000 4,900 4,90,00,000 4,900

Note - The proceeds from issue of shares during the previous year had been used in accordance with the purpose of the issue.

€) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares:
Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the equity shares held by the shareholders.
0% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
The Company has only one class of 0% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Refer note (a) to the
Statement of Changes in Equity.

d) Details of shareholders (as per the register of shareholders) holding more than 5% of shares in the Company:
Pati culars As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Navneet Education Limited, the holding company 4,93,51,048 99.99% 4,93,51,048 99.99%
Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
Navncet Education Limited, the holding company 4,90,00,000 100.00% 4,90,00,000 100.00%
Note - As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members, the above shareholding represents legal ownerships of
shares.

e) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the

reporting date:
There is no issue of shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the previous five years.
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

15

15,

—

16

16.1

17

i8

Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
Vehicle Loan (Secured)

Indian rupee loan from NBFC (Refer note 15.1 below)

Less: Amount presented under 'Other financial liabilities' (Refer note 21)

Total

37 44
7 %
30 37

Vehicle loan (Secured) amounting to Rs. 55 Lakhs was taken during the financial year 2018-19 and carries interest @
10.7044%. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly instalments of Rs. 0.92 Lakhs each including interest. Number of
instalments remaining as at 31st March 2021 is 14 (31st March 2020: 26). This loan is secured against hypothecation
charge created on vehicle and one month instalment in advance which is grouped under Security deposits in note 7 'Non-

current financial assets'.

Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities on right of use assets

Less: Amount presented under current lease liability

Total

Refer note 3.2 for adjustment on account of pre-mature termination of lease.

Other non-current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer note 33)
- Compensated absences
Other provisions
- Performance bonus
- Sales return

Total

Current and non-current bifurcation:

167 652
(37 (162)
130 490
5 12

5 12

5 11

94 104

91 86
1,414 1,432.
1,604 1,633

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 5 - 9 2
Compensated absences 94 - 104 -
Performance bonus 91 - 86 -
Sales return 1,414 - 1,432 -
Total 1,604 - 1,631 2
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N flcf
\\ I :'
v (Z]
| || \ \




Indiannica Learning Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
18.2 Movement of other provisions
Particulars Performance Sales Return Total
Bonus

At April 01, 2020 86 1,432 1,518
Add: additions during the year 76 1,879 1,955
Less: amount used / adjustment during the year (71) (1,897) (1,968)
At March 31, 2021 91 1,414 1,505
At April 01, 2019 316 1,657 1,973
Add: additions during the year 71 1,432 1,503
Less: amount used / adjustment during the year (302) (1,657) (1,959)
At March 31, 2020 86 1,432 1,518

183
a)

b)

19

19.1

19.2

193

20

20.1
20.2

Description of provisions:
Employee benefits
Refer note 33 for details of employee benefits provided by the Company.

Provision for Sales Return

Provision for expected sales returns are made based on trend arrived as average of actual sales return to sales of
previous three years. Also, additional provision is accounted based on management expectations of higher sales return
considering the volatility arisen due to Covid-19 lockdown and review of market condition / information.

Provision for Performance Bonus
The Company has made provisions for performance bonus which are expected to be paid in the next year.

Borrowings

Unsecured

Loan from holding company (Refer note 19.1 and note 37) 400 100
Secured

Bank overdraft (Refer note 19.2 & 19.3 below) 3,096 3,000
Total 3,496 3,100

Intercorporate loan (unsecured) is taken from the holding company (Navneet Education Limited) and carries interest @
7% (31st March 2020: 8%). This loan are repaid subsequently after the year end.

The average rate of interest for the above mentioned overdraft facility during the year is 8.60% per annum (Previous
year 8.78% per annum).

Bank Overdraft is secured against charge on current assets & fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company,
along with Corporate Guarantee for Rs. 4,000 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 3,000 Lakhs) from holding company.

Trade payables

- Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note 20.3 below) 215 153
- Due to Others 1,078 931
Total 1,293 1,084
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-90 day credit terms. e
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer note 39. f/” e
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(Amount in Lakhs)

____Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

20.3 Details of the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), as on 31st March 2021 based on available information with the

Company which are as under:

21.

—

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

a) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 215 153
accounting year;

b) the interest due on above, remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of - -
accounting year;

€} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED # 50
Act (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting - -
year; and

f) the amount of further .interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

21 Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturity of vehicle loan from NBFC 7 7
Provision for Expenses 67 15
Employee Benefits Payable 52 74
Retention money against sale of car (Refer note 21.1 below) - 5
Total 126 101
During the year, the Company has repaid Rs. 5 Lakhs which was retained against sale of a car in FY 2017-18.

22 Other current liabilities
Statutory Dues
- Providend fund / ESIC / Profession tax 16 17
- Tax deducted at source 41 54
- Goods and Service Tax 21 41
Deferred Revenue 24 35
Total 102 147
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(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

e Pa_rtnc ulars March 2021 March 2020
23 Revenue from operations
a) Sale of products
Finished goods (Books) 4,414 7,794
Traded Goods (Books) 30 32
Gross sales 4,444 7,826
Less: Sales discount and incentives (1,410) (2,455)
3,034 5,371
b) Other operating Revenue 72 126
Total 3,106 5,497
23.1 Disclosures of Ind AS 115:

a) Contracts with customer and significant judgement in applying the standard:
i) The company is in the business of publishing and sale of educational books with products ranging from schoot books, reference
books, technical & professional books.

The company applies the guidance provided in Ind AS 115 '‘Revenue from contracts with customer' for determining the timing
of recognition of revenue. Refer note 2.1(j) of significant accounting policies.
ii)  For details of revenue recognised from contracts with customers, refer note 23 above.

iii} There are no contract assets arising from the Company's contract with customers.

b) Disaggregation of revenue
i) For disaggregation of revenue, refer break-up given in note 23 above.

i) No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the period ended 31st March 2021 and
31st March 2020.

¢} Performance obligation
i) For timing of satisfaction of its performance obligations, refer note 2(j) of significant accounting policies of the Company.

ii)  Unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations are due to unexpired contract period in cases where the contract for
Subscription of digital content and royalty for right to use license. The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to
unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations is Rs. 29 Lakhs (31st March 2020: Rs. 46 Lakhs); out of which 84%
(31st March 2020: 74%) is expected to be recognised as revenue in the next 12 months.

24 Other income

Finance income
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 5

Miscellaneous income
- Royalty income 10 10

Total 10 15
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March 2021 March 2020
25 Cost of materials and components consumed
Material consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 5 5
Add : Purchases 1,053 1,350
Less: inventory at the end of the year 5 5
Total 1,053 1,350

26 Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

Inventories at the end of the period
Finished goods (Books) 1,351 1,466
Traded Goods 60 71

Inventories at the beginning of the period

Finished goods (Books) 1,466 2,235
Traded Goods 71 83
Totai 127 781

27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and bonus 1,693 1,855
Contribution to provident and other funds 97 112
Gratuity expense (Refer note 33) 30 34
Staff welfare expenses 45 83
Total 1,865 2,084

28 Finance costs

Interest

- On borrowings 237 402
- On leased Asset (Refer note 36) 29 16
Other finance charges 1 1
Total 267 419

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer note 3 and also 122 61
refer note 3.2)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 132 162
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 5) 495 497
Total 749 721
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(Amount in Lakhs)

30

30.1

30.2

30.3

31

a)

b)

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended
31ist March 2021 31st March 2020

Other expenses

Royalty
Editorial expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Logistics expenses
Business promation
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses
Legal and professional fees
Rent & Maintenance
Payment to auditor (Refer note 30.1 below)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & credit losses
Altowance for doubtful advances
Allowance for doubtful deposit
Repairs and maintenance
Computers
Others
Electricity and water
Communication costs
Packing cost
Fixed assets disposed off
Miscellaneous expenses (Refer note 30.3 below)
Loss on Lease Termination (Refer note 30.2 below)

Total

Payment to auditors (including GST):
As auditors

Statutory audit fee

Tax audit fee

Reimbursement of expenses

Refer note 3.2 for impact on account of pre-mature termination of lease.

186 363
134 228
172 372
226 377
19 113
78 78
40 52
21 51
6 10
530 105
- 41
11 -
9 69
12 14
10 13
25 45
20 18
11 -
46 28
28 -
1,671 1,977
5 8
1 1
- 1
6 10

Miscellaneous expenses for the financial year includes Rs. 15 Lakhs paid as penalty upon opting for ‘Vivad se vishwas

scheme’ for one of the tax dispute relating to AY 2018-19.

Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020 are:

Statement of profit and loss

Current tax

(40)

Deferred tax (22)
Total tax expenses as per statement of profit and loss (40) (22)
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory tax rate:
Profit before tax (2,627) (1,834)
Enacted tax rates in India 22.88% 22.88%
Computed expected tax expense (601) (420)
DTA not recognised on tax loss during the year 292 394
Related to tax rate change - 34
Others (Also refer note 8.1) 269 (30)
At the effective income tax rate (40) (22)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (40) (22)
rd < 5 = \\\
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(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Particulars

Considering uncertainties on utilisation of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) recognised in earlier years in financial statements due
to losses incurred, increase in DTA (if any) is restricted to increase.in deferred tax liability.

Details of tax losses:

The Company is having carry forward depreciation losses as at 3ist March 2021 of Rs. 2,924 Lakhs (Previous year: Rs.
2,453 Lakhs) which doesn't have any expiry date and carry forward business losses as on 31st March 2021 is Rs. 6,026
Lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 5,223 Lakhs) which will be expired in next 4 to 8 (Previous year : 5 to 8 years).

32 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share:
Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year for 4,93,51,063 4,93,51,063
calculation of basic and diluted EPS
Net (Loss) before Other Comprehensive Income available for computing (2,587) (1,811)
basic and diluted EPS
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (5.24) (3.67)
32.1 As per paragraph 23 of Ind AS 33 'Earnings Per Share', mandatorily convertible instrument should be considered for basic

EPS from the date of the contract and accordingly, optionally convertible preference shares (OCPSs) issued by the Company
are not considered for the purpose of calculation of basic EPS. Further, the same is not considered for the purpose of
calculation of diluted EPS also, as impact of the same would be anti-diiutive.
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33 Defined benefit plan

(Amount in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Provision for gratuity 5

11

Total 5

11

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure
15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. The scheme is funded with Life

Insurance Corporation.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in

the balance sheet and changes in the projected benefit obligation.

Net benefit expense recognised in the statement profit and loss

Current service cost 29 33
Interest cost on benefit obligation (Net) 1 1
30 34
Net benefit expense recognised in the other comprehensive income
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plan 22 17
22 17
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation (129) (133)
IFair value of plan assets 123 122
Pian liability (6) (11)
Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Opening defined benefit obligation 133 116
Interest cost 9 9
Current service cost 29 33
Benefits paid (17) (8
Acluarial losses on obligation (26) (17)
Ciosing defined benefit obligation . 128 133
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 122 103
Expected return 4 8
Contributions by employer 14 19
Benefit paid 17) (8
Actuarial gain - #
Closing fair value of plan assets 123 122

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 34.74 Lakhs to gratuity in the next year.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Life Insurance Corporation [Funds Managed by Insurer] 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

100%

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Discount rate 6.76%
Salary escalation 9.00%
Mortalily rates 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14)

:mployee turnover
Ages: up to 30 years 20.00%
From 31 to 44 years 15.00%
Above 44 years 10.00%
Normal retirement age(Years) 65
Average remaining working life (Years) 29.00

6.76%

9.00%

100% of IALM
(2012 - 14)

20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
65
29.70

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.




Indiannica Learning Private Limited
notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
CIN: U22110DL1998PTC094399

34

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation.

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

(Amount in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 128 133
Tmpact due to increase of 0.50 % -5.10 -5.31
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 5.48 5.71
b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 128 133
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 5.34 5.56
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % -5.02 -5.23

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

(Amount in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 9 9
Between 1 and 5 years 48 47
Belween 5 and 10 years 72 77

Contingent Liabilities & litigations
Income tax matters:

The Company has tax disputes against the demand raised and penalty levied by the Assessing Officer aggregating to Rs. 69 lakhs (Previous Year
Rs. 130 lakhs). Details of the same is given below:

a) On-going tax demand of Rs. 69 lakhs for FY 2016-17 with CIT (Appeals) - Refund of FY 2018-19 of Rs. 2 lakhs is adjusted against this demand.

b) Tax demand of Rs. 61 lakhs for FY 2017-18 with CIT (Appeals) has been seftled during the year by opting for 'Vivad se Vishwas Scheme'. The
Company has paid Rs. 15 Lakhs as per the Scheme for settlement of dispute in full.

ity Other matters

35

During the year, the company has pre-terminated lease arrangement for office premises and vacated the same on 15th January 2021.
Conseguent to such pre-termination of lease, landlord of the premises has filed tegal dispute with the Delhi High Court and based on this filing,
Delhi High Court has appointed sole arbitrator. Subsequent to year-end, landlord has filed claim aggregating to Rs. 275 lakhs against the
company for recovery of lease rent for the lock-in period mentioned in the agreement, payments made to contractors for fit-outs in year 2015
considering larger tenure of the lease arrangement along-with compounding interest.

As per the management and appointed lawyer, the Company has a good arguable case on merits and thus has a reasonable probability of
delending the claim.

uture cash outflows in respect of matters considered disputed in (i) and (i) above are determinable only on receipt of judgment / decision
pending at various forums / authorities. Considering the facts of the case of Company, the management does not expect any cash outflow in
respect of the pending dispute and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statements.

Capital Commitments and Other Commitments
{stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. NIL (31st March 2020: Rs. NIL).

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' from 1st April 2019. Refer note 2.1(f) for accounting policy on leases.

As a lessee

The company has lease contracts for office premises and warehouse used in its operations. For lease arrangement with lease terms of 12 months
or less, the Company has applied the ‘short-term tease’ recognition exemptions.

FFor addition, depreciation and carrying value of right of use asset, refer note 4.
(Amount in Lakhs)

|l ) Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer note 28) 29 16
b) Lease expenscs

Lease expenses in case of short term leases (Refer note 30) 21 51

Lease expenses in case of low value leases (other than short
term as disclosed above) :

170
191

199
250

Lease expenses debited to lease liabilities
Total cash outflow for leases [incl. short term & low value leases]
Variable lease payments not considered in measurement of lease
liabiltics
iIncome from subleasing ROU assets - -

Also refer nole 3.2 and 34 ii) for details regarding terminatign of fease—_
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37 Related party disclosures

(I) Name of Related Parties and related party relationship:

Name of the relative

[flature of_relalfibrl-s'hip
|lolding Company & Ultimate holding company

Navneet Education Limited

'Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Sumit Gupta (Managing Director)

Mr. Tushar Jani (Independent Director)

Mr. Chandravir Das (Independent Director) (upto 1st July 2020)

Mr. Sanjeev Shankar (Independent Director) (w.e.f. 15th January 2021)
Mr. Piyush Pravin Gada (Independent Director) (From 1ist August 2020 to
16th January 2021)

Mr. Yasho Verma (Director)

Mr. Raju Gala (Director) (w.e.f. 15th January 2021)
Mr. Anil Gala (Director)

Mr. Sanjeev Gala (Director)

Mr. Kalpesh Gala (Director) (upto 16th January 2021)

'Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and relatives as per the Companies
|Act, 2013

Mr, Pratik Bhasker (CFO) (upto 20th August 2019)
Mr. Deepak Kaku (CFO) (w.e.f. 21st August 2019)
Ms. Meera Sawhney (Company Secretary)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives (only where there are transactions)

Esense Learning Private Limited

Post-employment Benefit Plan

Indiannica Learning Group Gratuity Scheme
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(a)

®)

a)

b)

39

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The management assessed that the fair values of financial asset and financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, interest accrued on deposits with bank, bank deposits, trade payables and other
financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The management has considered fair value of security deposits, loan from NBFC, loan from bank, loan from related party, equal to their carrying
value as fair values based on the current market interest rates and other risk factors approximate to carrying value.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the financial assets and financial liabilities by level with the fair value measurement hierarchy :
(Amount in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Level of input used  Carrying Amount Level of input used Carrying Amount
in¥ in*

Financial assets

At Amortised Cost

Trade receivables (net of provisions) NA 4,395 NA 5,852
Cash and cash equivalents NA 309 NA 176
Bank deposits NA 3 NA 3
Security deposits NA 57 NA 51
Financial liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Indian rupee loan from NBFC NA 37 NA 44
Indian rupee loan from related party NA 400 NA 100
Other financial liability NA 119 NA 94
Bank overdraft NA 3,096 NA 3,000
Lease Liability NA 167 NA 652
Trade payabies NA 1,293 NA 1,084

* Level is NA, since valued at amortised cost.
Financial risk management objectives and policies

I'he Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks which are summarized below :

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprise three types of risk: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
primarily include trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents.

The sensitivily analysis in the following sections relate to the position for the periods presented. The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the
basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analysis exclude the
impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity obligation and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks based on the financial assets
and financial liabilities held at the periods presented.
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Interest rate risk

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held constant. The impact
on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

(Amount in Lakhs)
Change in Interest Effect on profit before

Rate tax
March 31, 2021 1% -31
-1% 31
March 31, 2020 1% -30
-1% 30

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to trade payables, trade receivables.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The foltowing tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

(Amount in Lakhs)
Effect on profit before

Change in USD rate

tax
March 31, 2021 5% 0.36
-5% -0.36
March 31, 2020 5% 1.48
-5% -1.48

Price risk
The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primarily for trade receivables and deposits with banks and other financial

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed based on the Company’s established policy, procedures and controf relating to customer credit risk management.
The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low. There are no customers who represent more than 10%
of the balance of trade receivables. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored by the management.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold
collateral as security.

I'he ageing of trade receivable and credit loss allowance is as under:
(Amount in Lakhs)

[ o Particulars Ageing (based on due date) Total

Upto 6 months More than 6 months
|As at 31st March 2021
|Seeured - - -
[Unsecured 4,264 953 5,217
Total receivables _ 4,264 953 5,217
|Allowance for doubtful receivables & credit losses 822
| Net Receivables 4,395
|Expected loss rate ¥ - 16%
|As at 31st March 2020
‘Secured - - -
‘Unsecured 5,909 236 6,145
i_TotaI receivables 5,909 236 6,145
|Allowance for doubtful receivables & credit losses 293
|Net Receivables 5,852
|Expected loss rate * 5%

* Expected loss rate includes both allowance made based on age of the receivable and expected loss based on historical experience.
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Movement in credit loss allowance (Amount in Lakhs)

| particutars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st

| March 2021 March 2020
\Balance at the beginning 292 399
Additional provision 530 105
Amounts written off or utilised = 212
|Balance at the end 822 292

Deposits with banks and other financia! assets
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable fosses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
(Amount in Lakhs)

iParticulars Less than 3 months | 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

|Year ended 31st March 2021

|Tndian rupee loan from related party 400 400
Bank overdraft 3,096 - - 3,096
Trade payables 1,293 - - 1,293
Loase liability 9 28 130 167
Other financial liability 119 - - 119
indian rupee vehicle loan from NBFC 2 5 30 37
Year ended 31st March 2020

Indian rupee loan from related party 100 100
Bank overdraft 3,000 - - 3,000
Trade payables 1,084 = = 1,084
Lecasc liability 41 122 490 652
Other financial liability 94 - - 94
|Indian rupee vehicle loan from NBFC 2 5 37 44

As at year end, current liabilities of the Company are less than current assets. The Company, based on detailed projections does not expect any
significant liquidity risk.

Bank Guarantee
The Company has given bank guarantee to Sales Tax department of Rs. 2 Lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 2 Lakhs). Further, the Company has kept
deposits with bank against this bank guarantee which are disclosed in note 12 along-with accrued interest.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the
cquity shareholders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes suitable adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. For the purpose of calculation of net-
debts, the Company has included loan obligations (short term and long term), lease liabilities (short term and long term) and trade and other
payables and the same is adjusted with cash and cash equivalents.

(Amount in Lakhs)

!Particulars Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
s March 2021 March 2020
Vehicle loan from NBFC 44 51
Loan from holding company 400 100
Lease liability 167 652
Bank overdraft 3,096 3,000
Trade payables 1,293 1,084
‘Less: cash and cash equivalents -309 -176
Net Debt 4,691 4,711
Equity * 1,451 4,022
Capital and Net debt 6,142 8,733
Gearing Ratio 76% 54%

* inctuding accumulated debit balance of profit and loss and equity component of optionally convertible preference shares
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“adiannica Learning Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
CIN: 122110DL1998PTC094399

41 the Company’s activities during the year revolve around ‘Publishing and sale of educational books’. Considering the nature of Company’s business
and operations, there is only one reportable segment (business and/or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108

a4

46

47

“TFO.

‘Operating Segments’, prescribed under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Company has incurred substantial losses during the year and previous financial years; also current liabilities of the Comapny are exceeding
current assets as at year-end. The financial statements of the Company is prepared on going concern basis considering the positive net-worth and
continuous financial support from the holding company. Further, management of the Company is confident of making profits in near future and
the Company will realize its assets and discharge liabilities in the normal course of business based on future projections / profitability as approved

by Managing Director and Chairman.

Revenue of the Company is significantly reduced as compared to last year on account of non-opening of schools amid Covid-19 lock-down. The
management of the Company expects improvement in business going forward. The Company has made assessment of its liquidity position and
has considered internal and external information in assessing the recoverability of its assets such as intangible assets, trade receivable, inventories
etc. The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the
Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of these assets. This being a technical matter has been relied upon by the auditors.

The impact assessment of COVID-19 is an ongoing process, and may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements, given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and the Company will continue to monitor all material changes to the

entity's environment.

Changes in financing liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes:
- (Amount in Lakhs)
| Particulars March 31, 2020| Cash flows (net) |Impact of Ind AS 116 March 31, 2021
|Vehicle Loan ] 44 -7 - 37
|Loan from Parent company 100 300 - 400
|Lease Liability (impact of IND AS 116) 652 -171 -315 167
Total 144 293 - 437
o - (Amount in Lakhs)
) Particulars March 31, 2019| Cash flows (net) |Impact of Ind AS 116 March 31, 2020
Vcehicle Loan 50 -6 = 44
Loan from Parent company 2,900 -2,800 - 100
Lease Liability (impact of IND AS 116) - -195 847 652
Total 2,950 -2,806 - 144

The Company has accounted for lease liabilities and fair value changes in accordance with Ind AS 116 implemented during the previous year.

Total

Particulars Year ended 3ist|Year ended 31st
. . March 2021 March 2020
i) Yransition adjustment on implementation of Ind AS 116 0 831
ii} Finance cost on lease liabilities 29 16
iii) Adddition during the year 176 -
iii) Deletion during the year (after consideration of depreciation) -519 -
-315 847

Additional Information as required by para 7 of General Instructions for preparation of Statement of Profit and Loss (other than already disclosed

above) are either Nil or Not Applicable.

# in financial statement represents amount less than Rs. 50,000.

Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.
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